
Procurement Board 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 13 March 2019

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: The Boardroom, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 6 March 2019 

(Pages 1 - 2)

4  Matters arising 

5  Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public) 

5a Request for Approval - Contract Extension - Salford Handyperson 
Service 

(Pages 3 - 12)

5b Request for Approval - Appointment of a Project and Programme 
Manager to Take a Client Lead on Grant Funded Infrastructure 
Projects 

(Pages 13 - 20)

5c Request for Approval to go out to Competition - Crescent and 
University Masterplan - Procurement of Private Sector Partner 

(Pages 21 - 34)

6  Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public) 

7  Exclusion of the public 

8  Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public) 

9  Date and time of next meeting 

Public Document Pack



10:00 a.m. on Wednesday 3 April 2019 in the Boardroom, Salford City 
Council, Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk



Page | 1 

PROCUREMENT BOARD

06 March 2019

Meeting commenced: 10:00 a.m. 
Meeting ended; 10:42 a.m.

PRESENT: Councillors Hinds (in the chair) and Boshell

IN ATTENDANCE: Ben Dolan Strategic Director Place
Chris Hesketh Head of Financial Management
Majid Maqbool Energy Manager
Paul Nugent Strategic Head of Procurement
Kurt Partington Principal Planner
Carol Eddleston Senior Democratic Services Advisor

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of the City Mayor and Councillor Merry.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 2019 were approved as a correct record.

4. MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

ITEMS FOR DECISION – PART 1

5. GREENING THE GREY: LOWRY PLAZA IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking to award a 
contract for significant environmental improvements to one of the city’s major visitor 
attractions. The project would improve safety and enhance access across the plaza 
through enhanced lighting and the reprofiling of adjoining spaces. The sub-schemes 
within the project had been specifically designed to minimise the maintenance 
requirements.

It was confirmed that just over 50% of the funding was already allocated in the Capital 
Programme under the Green City Programme, with the remainder being funded from 
Section 106 payments. 

The Principal Planner agreed to ascertain whether the ‘Living Wage’ referred to in the 
report was the National Living Wage or the Foundation Living Wage and to speak to the 
contractor about the board’s expectations that contractors would at least work towards 
achieving the City Mayor’s Charter for Employment Standards.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page | 2 

RESOLVED, THAT:

1) A three months contract be awarded to Groundworks Landscape Limited to carry out 
the Lowry Plaza Improvement project, at a cost of £306,506;

2) Urban Vision Professional Services fees of £32,206.21 be approved for Landscape 
Design, Supervision and CDM duties associated with the above works, and

3) The Principal Planner clarify the position of Groundworks Landscape Limited in 
relation to the Living Wage and the City Mayor’s Charter for Employment Standards.

ITEMS FOR DECISION – PART 2

6. SWINTON TOWN CENTRE

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking an exception 
to Contractual Standing Orders to allow the direct award of a contract for advice as part 
of the Swinton Transformation Masterplan.

RESOLVED: THAT, 
1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved in accordance with 

Paragraph 3.1 as follows: the need for the goods, services or works is so urgent that 
the time needed to comply with the rules would be prejudicial to the council’s 
interests and specialist services which are available from only one supplier, and

2) A four month contract be awarded to Cheetham & Mortimer for advice as part of the 
Swinton Transformation Masterplan, at a maximum cost of £50,000.

7. UNMETERED STREET LIGHTING  AND OVER 100 kW ELECTRICITY AND 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to 
award the contracts for the supply of unmetered public lighting and over 100kW 
electricity.

It was confirmed that schools were included in the Council’s contract but were invoiced 
directly. Some of the city’s academies had a Service Level Agreement with the council 
but were included in a separate contract.

The board welcomed the fact that 100% of the energy offered under both contracts was 
green, which aligned with the council’s support for the generation of electricity from 
renewable sources to tackle climate change.

RESOLVED, THAT:
1) A 24 month contract be awarded to Scottish & Southern Electric (SSE) for the supply 

of unmetered public lighting, and
2) A 24 month contract be awarded to Haven Power for the supply of over 100kW 

electricity.

Page 2



Sample D – Extension of Contract

*Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Place

TO  

Procurement Board

ON

13th March 2019 

TITLE:  Approval for an Extension of the Contract for Salford Handyperson Service 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Procurement Board:

Approve the extension of the Contract for the Salford Handyperson Service as 
detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Contract Reference
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project Salford Handyperson Service

Name of Contractor Swinton Community Business t/a Helping Hands

Type of organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Private Limited Company

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME

Value of Contract Extension £350,000 Per Annum (estimated 
average)

Existing Contract Term 01/04/2016 to 31/03/2019
Extension Period Requested 01/04/2019 to 31/03/2020

Contact Officer (Name & number) Caren Green (0161 793 2835)

Lead Service Group Place

Funding Source Capital Programme

Page 3

Agenda Item 5a



Sample D – Extension of Contract

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to request an extension to the contract for Salford 
Handyperson Service. The contract was awarded for an initial period of three years, 
with two optional extensions of 12 months each. The initial 3 year period of the 
contract will expire on 31st March 2019. 

There is provision within the current contract to extend the agreement for a further 
period from 01/04/2019 to 31/03/2020

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

Procurement Board Report - Request for Approval to Award the Contract for Salford 
Handypersons Service - 13th January 2016 / 27th January 2016

Procurement Board Report – approval granted to go out to competition for the 
Citywide Handyperson service - 29th April 2015 

Assistant Mayor Briefing – Procurement of the Citywide Handypersons Service 
Contract 2016-2019 – Housing and Planning on 14th April 2015 / Adult Services and 
Service for Older People 9th April 2015.

KEY DECISION:  Yes

DETAILS: 

1. Background

1.1 The Procurement Board granted approval on 29th April 2015 to go out to 
competition for the Citywide Handyperson service. The contract was awarded 
for an initial period of three years, with two optional extensions of 12 months 
each.  The extensions require approval by the Procurement Board. The initial 
3 year period of the contract will expire on 31st March 2019. 

1.2 Provision is made in the Council’s Private Sector Housing Assistance Policy 
for the Council to provide handypersons services and the policy sets out the 
eligibility criteria and the types of works which are expected from the delivery 
of the contract.

1.3 An OJEU compliant tender process was undertaken appointing Swinton 
Community Business t/a Helping Hands as the successful provider from April 
2016. The contract was awarded “subject to funding availability” which does 
not commit the Council to a specific financial award.

1.4 There is a robust business case (as detailed within this report) for the 
extension of the Citywide Handyperson Service that includes evidence of the 

Page 4



Sample D – Extension of Contract

social value of the contract investment, good support from a wide range of 
professional stakeholders and demand from an important older, vulnerable 
demographic.

1.5 The bid was submitted via the Capital Gateway process for £300k for the first 
year of the contract 2016-2017 and subsequent bids have been made 
annually following a review of service performance. On award of the contract it 
was recognised that the Council was making a commitment to the appointed 
organisation to provide consistency of an annual financial allocation in order 
for delivery of the contract to be successful.

 
2. Rationale for requesting an extension of the Contract.

2.1 An extension is in the best interests of the Council as the current provider is 
delivering a valued service that is meeting all contractual requirements. Under 
the contract the Handyperson Service is to deliver 8,630 ‘priority’ jobs per 
annum. A ‘job’ is essentially a visit to a property at the request of the occupant 
for assistance and a ‘property maintenance check’ (PMC) is completed by the 
Handyperson on all first visits.

2.2 On average a ‘job’ results in 1.4 ‘measures’ being undertaken per ‘job’. As 
part of the tender selection process the overall target was broken down to 
identify specific types of tasks which cover a number of related ‘measures’ to 
which indicative forecasts were attached. Due to the reactive nature of the 
service there is flexibility across the tasks to allow the service to be reactive to 
meet demand.

2.3 Under the previous arrangement preceding this contract with Helping Hands 
the target had been to deliver 6000 priority jobs per annum. The contract 
target 2016/2019 is to deliver at least 8630 priority jobs per annum. This 
challenging ‘stretch’ target has been exceeded annually and is on track to 
exceed again in year 3 (2018/19). 

2.4 Each year 10% of all clients, chosen randomly, are selected for a customer 
survey. Customers are contacted by telephone and asked for feedback on the 
quality of the administration and overall experience with the Handyperson. 
The contract requires the Handyperson service to maintain a minimum 
customer satisfaction rate of 95% per annum and of the 10% surveyed in 
2016/17 and 2017/18 there was an overall 100% customer satisfaction rate. 

2.5 To date the contract has undertaken 9336 ‘priority’ jobs in 2016/17 and 8893 
in 2017/18, exceeding the contracted ‘stretch’ target. The service is also on 
track to exceed this target again in 2018/19, as shown in Table 1 below. 

Table 1: Work Activity performance against target by year of contract
Work Activity contract Y1 2016/17 Y2 2017/18 Y3 2018/19 

to end Q3
Visits work undertaken 8630 9336 8893 6654

Page 5



Sample D – Extension of Contract

Visits no work undertaken 800 1329 760 653

2.6 The Handyperson service has also carried out an additional 2742 visits to 
customers from March 2016 up to the end of December 2018, which did not 
result in ‘measures’ being undertaken (see Table 1 above). The Handyperson 
utilises this opportunity to carry out a client and property assessment, from 
which onward referrals to other services that can assist the client are made.

2.7 Referrals are made to other schemes such as the ‘Green Handyperson 
Service’ for energy efficiency improvements, the ‘gas safe’ scheme for checks 
on gas appliances, emergency heating referrals and referrals to the Fire 
Service who undertake fire safety improvements. The above fall outside of the 
‘priority’ contract and referrals assist in maximising the budget available under 
the contract. Helping Hands also has a contract with Children Services to 
provide child safety packages, further maximising the budget available.

2.8 The contract primarily serves to provide services to assist our aging 
population and support independent living at home. The performance target 
was to increase the client database by 1500 new clients per annum. During 
2016/17 there was an increase of 2111 new clients and 2017/18 saw an 
additional 1766. Helping Hands currently has a live database of 17,866 
customers. The majority of clients remain aged 65 years and over, followed by 
families with a child under the age of 5 years. Continuing demand for the 
service is reflected in the number of clients attracted year on year, as shown 
in Table 2 below.

Table 2: New Client performance against target by year of contract
New Clients contract Y1 2016/17 Y2 2017/18 Y3 2018/19 

to end Q3
New clients using service 1500 2111 1766 1463

3. Contract Monitoring and Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s)

3.1 The Handypersons service performance is measured against the Core 
Information requirements and service outputs that were included within the 
tender submission documents. These figures form part of the contract as 
targets for the organisation to achieve. 

3.2 Performance is also monitored by the contract management group, which is 
made up of the commissioners and the Handyperson contractor. The group 
meets quarterly with quarterly performance monitoring provided for these 
meetings. An Annual Business Plan review is produced that sets out the 
organisations overall performance against the contract’s KPI’s. Year 1 Annual 
Business Plan review (2016/17) and Year 2 Annual Business Plan review 
(2017/18) can be found in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 respectively. 

3.3 The contract requires the Handyperson service to deliver a minimum of 8630 
jobs per annum. Each ‘job’ will result in a ‘measure’ or ‘measures’ being 
carried out. Helping Hands provided forecasts for delivery of measures per 

Page 6



Sample D – Extension of Contract

annum over the 8630 jobs, an indicative number of 12500 ‘measures’ was 
provided based on previous demand. Table 3 below shows the breakdown of 
actual ‘measures’ installed per task type against the indicative forecast. Year 
3 figures are not currently available: 

Table 3 Indicative Task/Measures against actual measures completed per year 

Task / Measure type
Indicative 
forecast

Year 1   
16/17

Year 2 
17/18

Year 3 
18/19

Small repairs – inc. general maintenance 3004 3264 2542 n/a
Hospital Discharge aftercare 10 109 269 n/a
Gardening - to meet health and safety 163 22 24 n/a
Child Safety Priority 10 69 0 n/a
Minor Adaptations 1473 2576 2466 n/a
Rock Salt 3950 3817 3911 n/a
Home Security Improvements 1408 1121 1739 n/a
Energy Efficiency Improvements 2230 3351 414 n/a
Fire Safety Improvements 252 140 153 n/a
TOTALS 12500 14469 11518 TBC

3.4 As can be seen in the table above the reactive nature of the service requires 
flexibility across the tasks to allow the service to meet demand. The demand 
for small repairs increased in year 1 but reduced in year 2 allowing the service 
to deliver in areas such as minor adaptations and hospital discharge aftercare, 
where demand was higher. 

3.5 In order to ensure that the Council is not over-charged for materials, the 
Handyperson service provider priced a basket of the twelve most common 
jobs for the service so that a cost comparison against which to pay invoices 
was available. The average cost per measure including materials was 
estimated at £24.00, the actual cost in 2016/17 was £20.94 rising to £30.80 in 
2017/18. This is representative of the reactive, flexible nature of the contract 
allowing ‘measures’ to be carried out to meet demand, recognising that 
‘measures’ will differ in price whilst maintaining value for money across the 
piece.          

3.6 The average cost per visit was estimated at £34.76, with the actual cost being 
£32.13 in 2016/17 rising to £39.36 in 2017/18, including materials.  This 
remains within acceptable limits and remains competitive when compared with 
annual inflation rates. 

4. Providing Best Value to the Council 

4.1 In addition to exceeding the contract targets, residents of Salford have access 
to a valuable service which is often the first point of contact for elderly and 
vulnerable clients needing help and support.  A visit from a handyperson can 
open the door to many other support services available to the client and lead 
to improved wellbeing, which also promotes improved mental health and often 
will reduce demand on other stretched health and social services.

Page 7



Sample D – Extension of Contract

4.2 The service provides added value for both the client and other service areas 
as preventative  ‘tasks/measures’ are undertaken which aim to reduce the risk 
of falls at home, improve and maintain independent living, assisting earlier 
hospital discharge, improving warmth at home and improving home safety 
and security. This in turn anecdotally contributes to fewer hospital admissions, 
reduced demand on sheltered housing and nursing homes, reduced length of 
hospital stays, reduced fuel poverty and burglaries giving overall improved 
client confidence and health and well being.

4.3 Helping Hands use a Handyperson Benefits Toolkit (cost/benefit analysis) to 
monitor the contract and provide quarterly and annual reports on performance 
against the contract’s key performance indicators (KPI’s). For Priority work 
alone, the Handypersons Benefits Toolkit (cost/benefit analysis) demonstrates 
the cost effectiveness of a Handyperson visit. From a £336,560 investment 
Helping Hands achieve a £1,311,477 predicted reduction in costs to Health 
and Social Care through impact from reducing risk of falls, reducing risk of 
crime and reducing risk of injury. This figure equals a 290% return on 
investment from the Council, with a ratio of 1:4.

4.4 In addition to the Handyperson ‘priority’ contract, Helping Hands generates 
25% of total funding from other ‘non-priority’ work and 22% from other 
contracts. All surplus funding from the Helping Hands business model is made 
available as a Hardship Fund to enable fair and equitable access to services.

5. Achieving Social Value 

5.1 Helping Hands is a Salford based Social Enterprise, with the ability to deliver 
environmental, social and community value outcomes that can be used to 
measure the success of the contract.

5.2 The Handyperson service responds to direct customer enquiry in a way which 
meets individual need and manages emergency and priority requirements in a 
timely, responsive and flexible way. There is an independent quality 
assurance and customer feedback process in place for customer 
reassurance.

5.3 Social Value monitoring is provided alongside regular contract monitoring, 
updated on a quarterly basis and included within the Annual Business Plan 
review, which was aligned with Salford’s City Plan objectives (at the time of 
tender).  Section 4 of the Annual Business Plan review details of Social Value 
and how it is measured against the Plan. Year 1 Annual Business Plan review 
(2016/17) and Year 2 Annual Business Plan review (2017/18) can be found in 
Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 respectively.

5.4 Examples of achieving social value that Helping Hands monitor is to reduce 
worklessness which is measured by the number of staff who maintain 
employment with Helping Hands, improving education and skills by the 
number of staff on training courses and achieving a qualification, promoting 
the use of local labour and the proportion and value of goods and services 

Page 8



Sample D – Extension of Contract

purchased from Salford and Greater Manchester. All employees are paid the 
living wage.

5.5 Environmental values is achieved by the collection of unwanted furniture and 
white goods and redistribution, for free, to people in need. Helping Hands 
accepts free second-hand furniture donations. Helping Hands also 
demonstrates a clear role in reducing demand on other services via the 
Handyperson Benefits Toolkit which calculates ‘return on investment’ for 
statutory services.

5.6 Community Value is achieved by providing Handyperson services to other 
charities, voluntary and community groups who manage their services in 
community buildings throughout Salford. Helping Hands provides 
opportunities for and values volunteering in Salford and also the financial 
value those volunteers provide to the organisation. The service assists in 
improve living standards and reduce poverty for clients.

5.7 As a whole the Handyperson contract benefits from the additional services 
provided by Helping Hands which maximises outcomes for the client and the 
Council while also reducing pressures on scarce resources elsewhere. By 
taking the time to listen and explain things to clients, appropriate onward 
referrals should significantly reduce demand on other services.

5.8 The performance figures demonstrate year on year increases in clients 
accessing the Handyperson services and that Helping Hands are consistently 
achieving contractual obligations with high levels of customer satisfaction. The 
service continues to receive positive feedback from referring partners.

6. Next Steps for service delivery

6.1 Extending the contract for an additional 12 months will allow time for the 
Council to undertake a full evaluation of the initial 3 year performance figures 
and to identify any emerging trends, changes in type and nature of requests 
being received and any anticipated change in client needs in the future. 

6.2 A further report will be produced within the next 6 months for Lead Member 
with recommendations as to whether or not the service should cease at the 
end of the current period or note the terms on which is should be re-let. If 
appropriate a request will be made to seek new authority to undertake an 
OJEU compliant tender process to test the market and select a delivery 
partner to provide a Handyperson service from April 2021. Should a decision 
be taken to decommission the service and not procure a further supply then 
the current provider would need advance notice to enable it to make 
appropriate arrangements as it will put the organisation and jobs at risk.

6.3 To inform this, a review of the service will be undertaken looking at 
performance, demand and stakeholders to identify how the provision of a 
Handyperson service needs to be adapted holistically to meet anticipated 
future need. It is important that all partners/agencies that regularly access 
Handyperson services are included to better understand what their need is 

Page 9



Sample D – Extension of Contract

going forward, and securing their buy-in. It may be possible to pool budgets to 
achieve maximum benefits.

7. Recommendation

7.1 The purpose of this report is to request a 12 month extension to the contract 
for Salford Handyperson Service. The contract was awarded for an initial 
period of three years, with two optional extensions of 12 months each. The 
initial 3 year period of the contract will expire on 31st March 2019. 

7.2 It is therefore recommended that Procurement Board authorises an extension 
of the Handyperson service from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2020. There is 
provision within the current contract to extend the agreement for a further 
period from 1st April 2019 to 31st March 2020, with the option to extend for a 
further 12 months thereafter

 7.3 A further report will be submitted at the appropriate time to consider an 
extension from 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021, which will be influenced by 
the performance review referred to in the report. The performance figures,to 
date, demonstrate demand for a Handyperson service and that Helping Hands 
are consistently achieving contractual obligations with high customer 
satisfaction rates.  

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Private Sector Housing Assistance Policy 2014, Shaping Housing in Salford 2020 - a 
housing strategy for Salford, Affordable Housing Strategy, Salford City Council Older 
Person's Housing Strategy 2008 to 2018 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

The provision of the Handyperson Service is consistent with the City Councils 
Private Sector Housing Assistance Policy which has been subject to a full Equality 
Impact Assessment in 2014. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

Medium: the contract will continue to be managed through established 
arrangements, which have been audited internally. It will be managed and monitored 
by a Contract Management Group and will comply with the performance and quality 
requirements of Salford City Council. As per existing arrangements, project 
management and further support will be provided by officers of Regulatory Services. 
Expenditure of the capital funding is monitored through the Housing and 
Regeneration Capital Programme Monitoring Group.

Page 10

https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/388491/shaping-housing-in-salford-2020-a-housing-strategy-for-salford.pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/388491/shaping-housing-in-salford-2020-a-housing-strategy-for-salford.pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/379239/affordable-housing-strategy.pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/379437/promoting-indpendence-2008-2018.pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/379437/promoting-indpendence-2008-2018.pdf


Sample D – Extension of Contract

If the service is decommissioned it should be recognised that this contract is the 
main funding of the current provider and it will put at risk a significant number of the 
19 posts currently managing and delivering the handypersons service.

Risk relates to the implications if the scheme does not continue or any risk if there is 
a potential delay in extending the contract.

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

The Housing Capital Programme 2019/20 - subject to approval through the annual 
budget setting process. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: The Shared Legal Service 
Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning goods, services or works the Council must comply with the 
public procurement regulations and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s). In 
that regard, the handyperson services contract described in the report was awarded 
in 2016 for a 3 year period with the option to extend for up to 2 further years.

It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being 
extended (or modified providing any modification does not affect the overall nature of 
the contract) where the original agreement makes provision for the extension. CSO’s 
also allow for contract extensions to be made.
 
When the contract was originally awarded, it was clear that the initial term would be 
subject to a potential extension of two years, hence any risk that any extension 
granted could be subject to realistic challenge by an aggrieved provider, on the basis 
that it ought to have been put out again to tender and advertised in accordance with 
public contract regulations and CSO’s, is extremely low, and the option to extend 
within the original agreement is now being properly exercised.

It is not clear in the report what the value of the extension may be, but in accordance 
with CSO’s, where provision is made within an existing contract for an extension to 
the term, and the value is over £150,000, approval should be sought from 
Procurement Board. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: the Finance Team 
Natalie Birchall Tel, 2316 06/02/2019

The proposal to extend the agreement for a further 12 month period from 1st April 
2019 to 31st March 2020, will be funded from the 2019/20 approved capital 
programme.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Deborah Derbyshire x 6244  

Page 11



Sample D – Extension of Contract

There was provision within the existing tender for the option to extend for a further 
one year, therefore this complies with the Public Contract Regulations and the City’s 
Contractual Standing Orders.

Going forwards a full analysis of the service will be carried out and approval 
requested before a procurement process is undertaken.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: People

CONTACT OFFICER: Caren Green                                       TEL. NO. 2835

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All wards

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Business Plan Review 2017

2017  Yr 1 Business 
Plan Review.docx

Appendix 2 – Business Plan Review 2018

2018 Yr 2 Business 
Plan Review.docx

Page 12



1

Part 1 – Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE 

TO THE PROCUREMENT BOARD

On the 13th March 2019

TITLE:  APPOINTMENT OF A PROJECT AND PROGRAMME MANAGER 
THROUGH THE CAPPS OR STAR CONSULTANCY FRAMEWORK TO 
TAKE A CLIENT LEAD ON GRANT FUNDED INFRASTRUCTURE 
PROJECTS 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Procurement Board authorise the following: 

1. The appointment of an appropriately skilled consultant project and programme 
manager through either the CAPPS Construction and Professional Services 
Framework or STAR Procurement Framework to provide support in 
connection with the City Council’s growing workload of grant funded 
infrastructure projects.  This will initially be for a 12 month period.

2. An option to extend the appointment beyond the initial 12 month period, 
subject to future work load, availability of funding and reaching agreement with 
the Councils HR team and that;

3. Delegated Authority be given to the Strategic Director for Place to authorise an 
extension, subject to future work load, availability of funding and reaching 
agreement with the Councils HR team.

Detail required
Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project
Appointment of a project and programme 

manager  
Name of  Engineering Consultant To be arranged through the CAPPS 

Construction and Professional Services 
Framework or STAR Procurement Framework

Name of Successful Contractor 
Supplier Registration Number

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
Type of organisation

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)
Other

Status of Organisation
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

SME

Page 13

Agenda Item 5b



2

Contract Value
Other Costs

£
£

£100,000 (Estimated)

Contract Duration 12 months
Contract Start Date 01/04/2019
Contract End Date 31/03/2020

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

To be procured through the CAPPS 
Construction and Professional Services 

Framework or STAR Procurement Framework
Framework Details (where 

applicable)
(Procurement Body, Framework Reference 

& Title, Start/End Dates, Hyperlink, etc.)

CAPPS Construction and Professional 
Services Framework or STAR Procurement 

Framework

Funding Source Regeneration Capital Programme

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Salford City Council’s Regeneration Team has successfully made submissions for 
external funding for a range of infrastructure projects through both Growth Deal and 
the Greater Manchester Mayor’s Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund.

In addition, further funding bids are planned for a significant pipeline of new projects.

The City Council’s Regeneration Team had insufficient resource to adequately take 
the above projects forward and received authorisation from Procurement Board on 
the 23rd January 2019 to appoint 2 project and programme managers.  The process 
of procuring this support for a 12 month period through appropriate consultancy 
frameworks is currently underway. 

However, further to resolving this resourcing issue a key member of staff who was 
already dealing with Growth Deal and the Greater Manchester Mayor’s Cycling and 
Walking Challenge Fund projects has handed in their notice and will be leaving in 
mid-March 19.  This resource is currently provided by Urban Vision Partnership and 
is funded through the Regeneration Capital Programme.

Replacement support is therefore required as a priority.  An approach has been 
made to Urban Vision regarding a suitably skilled replacement. However, they have 
confirmed that they are unable to fulfil this request.

This report therefore seeks authority from Procurement Board to appoint an 
appropriately skilled consultant project and programme manager through either the 
CAPPS Construction and Professional Services Framework or STAR Procurement 
Framework.

It is proposed that this be for an initial 12 month period, with an option to extend 
based on assessment of future work load and available funding for the posts.  This 
would also be subject to reaching agreement with the Councils HR team.

Although quotations will be obtained through one of the frameworks based on both 
quality and price, it is estimated that the cost is likely to be in the region of £100,000.

Page 14



3

The Council will initially fund the cost through the Regeneration Capital Programme 
and reclaim the cost of funding the posts on a staged basis from the grant funding 
body at the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA)

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:    
N/A

KEY DECISION:    No

1. Detail 

1.1 To date the City Council has successfully made funding applications to both 
Growth Deal and the Greater Manchester Mayor’s Cycling and Walking 
Challenge Fund for projects to the value of circa £40 million.  These include: -

- Trafford Road
- SBNI inc. Swinton
- Chapel Street East Phase 1
- Swinton Greenway
- Liverpool Street Phase 1
- Ordsall Neighbourhood

1.2 In addition, the City Council’s Regeneration Team also plans to submit further 
funding bids to the GMCA for a significant pipeline of infrastructure projects 
valued at circa £40 million.  These include: -

- Salford Central/New Bailey Connectivity
- Phase 2 of Liverpool Street
- Swinton
- Walkden
- Salford Quays

1.3 There is insufficient resource available within the existing team to deal with the 
work required to manage the programme/project workload, which includes the 
following: - 

- Performing a strategic client project management function including 
overseeing project/programme management development, studies and 
delivery of physical schemes by Salford City Council’s delivery 
partner/external consultants.

- Leading the development and preparation of bids for grant funding linked to 
strategies and write and make business case submissions in order to 
secure funding for a range of infrastructure projects.

- Developing, commissioning, co-ordinating and managing a range of 
infrastructure and regeneration related projects, strategies and plans 
across all transport modes.

Page 15



4

- Managing projects in accordance with the City Council’s adopted project 
management procedures and other specific procedures and processes 
required by grant funding bodies.

- Managing and monitoring budgets and financial risks associated with 
programmes and projects to ensure effective management and financial 
propriety.

1.4 To resolve the resourcing issue identified above, Procurement Board 
authorised the appointment of 2 project and programme managers on the 23rd 
January 2019.  The process of procuring this support for a 12 month period 
through appropriate consultancy frameworks is currently underway.  

1.5 However,  further to resolving this resourcing issue a key member of staff who 
was already dealing with Growth Deal and the Greater Manchester Mayor’s 
Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund projects has handed in their notice and 
will be leaving in mid-March 19.  This resource is currently provided by Urban 
Vision Partnership and is funded through the Regeneration Capital 
Programme.

1.6 Replacement support is therefore required as a priority.  An approach has 
been made to Urban Vision regarding a suitably skilled replacement. However, 
they have confirmed that they are unable to fulfil this request.

1.7 This report therefore seeks authority from Procurement Board to appoint an 
appropriately skilled consultant project and programme manager through 
either the CAPPS Construction and Professional Services Framework or 
STAR Procurement Framework.

1.8 It is intended that this be for a period of 12 months with a review at the end of 
this period to determine whether an extension or alternative arrangement is 
required.

2.  Estimated Cost

2.1 Competitive quotations for the supply of the service will be obtained from 
appropriate infrastructure consultants on the CAPPS or STAR frameworks.  It 
is anticipated that the cost will be in the region of £100,000 for the project 
manager.

3. Funding 

3.1 The post will initially be funded through the Regeneration Capital Programme 
and the cost of funding the post reclaimed on a staged basis from the grant 
funding body at the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA)

3.2 The consultant project/programme manager will be working on projects funded 
through both Growth Deal and the Greater Manchester Mayor’s Cycling and 
Walking Challenge Fund.  As a result, their cost can be reclaimed from the 
grant funding body (GMCA) as a legitimate project cost.

Page 16



5

3.3 Project costs are normally claimed from the GMCA quarterly in arrears through 
an established process.

4. Social Value

4.1 Through the CAPPS or STAR frameworks, the City Council will seek to 
maximise labour sourced from the local area.

5. Conclusion

5.1 The City Council has achieved a great deal of success in securing project 
funding through both Growth Deal and the Greater Manchester Mayors 
Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund.

 
5.2 Building on this success, the City Council has a further pipeline of 

infrastructure projects that it intends to submit for funding. 

5.3 With the loss of a key member of staff, the significant risk is that the Council 
will not  deliver the infrastructure projects against which it has already secured 
funding.  Equally, the council’s ability to attract further grant funding for 
infrastructure projects is limited.

5.4 The most expedient way to resolve the resourcing issue is to appoint a 
consultant infrastructure project and programme manager through a 
consultancy framework.

5.5 This has been explored and the 2 most appropriate frameworks are CAPPS 
Construction and Professional Services and STAR Procurement.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Great 8
- 4. Economic Development
- 6. Transport

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

All of the projects to be taken forward will be designed to ensure that the schemes 
comply with the Disability Discrimination Act and highway safety standards. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium

 The significant risk is that without additional resource, the Council does not 
have the ability to deliver the infrastructure projects against which it has 
already secured funding.  

 Equally, the council’s ability to attract further grant funding for infrastructure 
projects is limited without additional resource in place.

Page 17



6

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:
Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a 
contract may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. CSO’s apply 
to every contract, including temporary ones, for the procurement of supplies, services 
and the execution of works undertaken by or on behalf of the Council, subject to 
certain exceptions listed in the Orders. CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable 
framework agreement exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable reason 
not to.

The CAPPS and STaR Frameworks are fully OJEU compliant and have been 
procured for named authorities, including Salford City Council and other public sector 
organisations to use. Each Framework is an overarching agreement through which 
those named organisations can select a service from a range of providers by 
undertaking an exercise to call off the services (eg. mini competition) and enter into 
an individual contract/agreement with that provider, according to the terms of the 
Framework Agreement. A contract will then be formed between the Council and the 
chosen provider/s. The Council will need to have followed the procedure set out in 
the Framework Agreements to ensure the procurement process is compliant.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Supplied by: Natalie Birchall ext 2316
The proposal to appoint a programme manager who will be working on projects 
which are funded from the Growth deal grant and the Majors challenge fund, allow all 
costs to be re-claimed on a staged basis from the grant funding body at the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA). 
There will be no impact on the City council resources.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: 
Supplied by:  Jennifer Hilton, Category Manager ext 6241

Procuring this requirement through the CAPPS Construction and Professional 
Services Framework or STAR Procurement Frameworks complies with both EU 
legislation and Salford City Council’s Contractual Standing Orders.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A

CONTACT OFFICER:  
Perry Twigg ext 6053

Page 18



7

Ben Dolan
Strategic Director
Place

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Part One  ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PLACE

TO

PROCUREMENT BOARD ON 13TH MARCH 2019

TITLE: Approval to go out to competition to procure a Private Sector Partner to deliver the 
University of Salford and Crescent Masterplan

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Procurement Board:

Grant authority for the commencement of procurement activities associated with the 
appointment of a Private Sector Partner to deliver the University of Salford and Crescent 
Masterplan. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

In Summer 2017 the City Council and University jointly commissioned 5plus architects and 
CBRE to develop a Masterplan for the University Campus, Adelphi and Crescent 
neighbourhoods. The initial Masterplan commission was concluded in February 2018 and 
the Council and University have subsequently been working closely with the University, 
5plus architects and CBRE to develop the Masterplan Business Case and Delivery Strategy. 

This report provides an overview of the Masterplan proposals, an update on progress since 
the initial Masterplan commission concluded in February 2018, sets out the approach to 
procuring a Private Sector Partner and seeks approval to commence procurement activities. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

- Report of the Head of Development to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 13th 
February 2017.

- Report of the Strategic Director, Environment and Community Safety to Property and 
Regeneration Briefing on 10th April 2017

- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 22nd 
May 2017 

- Presentation to the City Mayor by 5plus architects on 4th December 2017. 
- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to City Issues Briefing on 5th February 2018
- Presentation to Ward Councillors on 8th February 2018
- Report of the Strategic Director, Place, to Property and Regeneration Briefing on 12th 

February 2018. 
- Report of the City Mayor to Cabinet on 27th February 2018.
- Presentation to Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 21st May 2018

Page 21

Agenda Item 5c



- Report to Property and Regeneration Briefing - Crescent and University Masterplan 
26th November 2018

KEY DECISION: YES

DETAILS:

1.0 Background

1.1 In 2017 the City Council and University signed a Memorandum of Understanding 
to embed the principle of collaboration and lay the foundations for closer 
organisational working. In Summer 2017 the parties prepared a joint brief and 
jointly commissioned 5plus architects and CBRE to develop a Masterplan for the 
University Campus, Adelphi and Crescent neighbourhoods. 

1.2 The overarching aim of the Masterplan commission was to express the City’s 
and University’s shared ambitions around excellent design, place-making and 
quality of life for all those who live, work and study in the area alongside its 
visitors. 

1.3 The initial Masterplan commission was concluded in February 2018 and signed 
off by the University at its Council meeting on 23rd February 2018, and endorsed 
by the City Council at its Cabinet meeting on 27th February. 

1.4 The initial launch of the Masterplan at the MIPIM international property event in 
March 2018 was extremely well-received by the investor market and has 
attracted significant levels of interest from national and international developers 
and investors, who are now eager to formally bid for the opportunity. 

2.0 Overview of Masterplan proposals

2.1 The Masterplan aims to create an inviting, attractive and unified place which 
generates wealth, jobs and knowledge, enhancing the wider Salford economy. 
The Masterplan promotes a radical improvement to public realm and aims to 
establish strong physical connections between the University and surrounding 
communities, connecting existing and new development into a coherent and 
connected City District. The Masterplan strives to create:

 A place of discovery and inspiration;
 A place to learn, research and collaborate;
 An environment where industry and academia comes together;
 A place to meet the neighbours and make a home;
 A place where you can walk, cycle, play and rest; and
 A place surrounded by art, culture and heritage.

2.2 The Masterplan geography has been split into five ‘Development Zones’, each 
with their own unique character. The remainder of this section provides an 
overview of development proposals across each of the Development Zones. A 
plan illustrating the overall Masterplan proposals is attached to this report at 
Annex 1. 

2.3 Adelphi Development Zone

Page 22



Building on the success of the Timekeepers Square development, the 
Masterplan proposes the development of further low-density housing to the 
south of the Old Adelphi site, with higher density residential proposed to the 
south of the Adelphi Wharf development (which is currently on-site). Discussions 
are ongoing with Marston’s regarding the inclusion of the Old Pint Pot pub site 
as a development opportunity site – whereby the pub could be re-provided at 
ground floor level with new residential above.

The Masterplan previously proposed demolition of the Old Adelphi building and 
retention of the Centenary Building to accommodate a new school. Children’s 
Services have now confirmed there is no current or quantifiable future 
educational requirement for the site. In light of this, the Masterplan has been 
updated and proposes a further phase of low-rise residential on the site of the 
Old Adelphi Building and the potential for live/work accommodation for creative 
industries within the Centenary Building. 

2.4 The Crescent Development Zone

The Masterplan proposes the creation of a high quality ‘Cultural Gateway’ 
connecting the heritage and cultural assets of Salford Museum and Art Gallery, 
the Old Fire Station and the Working Class Movement Library – significantly 
enhancing the areas visitor draw. The gateway will be rejuvenated with quality 
landscaping and activation of ground floors with new cultural, food and drink 
related uses. 

Significant levels of high density residential development are proposed across 
the Development Zone. Demolition and redevelopment of the former Police HQ 
is proposed alongside demolition and redevelopment of the neighbouring 
University owned Faraday House for hotel use. Demolition of the University 
owned Crescent House and Humphrey Booth House for residential use is also 
proposed. 

To facilitate new development, the University’s large surface car park is to be 
replaced with a new multi-storey car park serving both the University and visitors 
to the area.

The line of the former Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal is protected and re-
imagined as a high quality walking/cycle route and linear park – providing a high 
quality amenity space and sustainable transport connection. 

2.5 Peel Park Campus Development Zone

The Masterplan seeks to create a modern, attractive campus with outstanding 
facilities to attract both industry collaboration and students. Key Masterplan 
proposals include:

- A further phase of student accommodation directly adjacent to the 
existing Student Village (between Peel Park and David Lewis Playing 
Fields) on City Council owned land. 

- Refurbishment of the existing sports centre and provision of a new 
artificial grass playing pitch on David Lewis playing Fields. 

- Development of a high quality new Computing, Science and Engineering 
building (formal pre-application discussions have now commenced and 
Morgan Sindall have been appointed to design and building the scheme) 

- Demolition of the Newton Building and development of new buildings for 

Page 23



the School of the Built Environment, the Salford Business School and a 
new Digital Learning commons building. The remainder of the site will be 
safeguarded to provide space for future University expansion. 

- Refurbishment of the Maxwell Building and Maxwell Hall to provide a 
high quality local conferencing and event-space offer. 

2.6 Health District Development Zone

The Masterplan proposes the demolition of poor quality, under-utilised buildings 
on the Frederick Road Campus, allowing new, flexible research buildings to be 
located and clustered around the existing University provision in health, 
midwifery and nursing. Open GP practices and existing services will be 
developed, allowing for greater community use. 

Energy House 2.0 – a high quality new building research facility - will be located 
within this Development Zone. Planning permission for the scheme is now in 
place and the University are now looking to appoint a contractor by early March 
2019, with a view to completing the development by Easter 2021. This 
Development Zone will also potentially accommodate a new multi-storey car 
park. 

A key Masterplan proposal is the redevelopment of Salford Crescent Station to 
provide the area with a high quality transport interchange and better connect the 
University’s Peel Park and Frederick Road Campus. In the long-term, there are 
ambitions to improve connections to the station from surrounding areas – 
potentially through an extension to the Metrolink network.   

2.7 Innovation District Development Zone

There is growing demand for high quality incubation, enterprise and research 
space to support the University and City in meeting the needs of industry. The 
Masterplan proposes the retention of Salford Innovation Forum and demolition 
of low-quality, small/medium sized units across the estate which no longer meet 
the needs of the new wave of digitally enabled industry and the provision of high 
quality, larger flexible buildings.  

This Development Zone provides a significant opportunity for the City and 
University to work in partnership to deliver significant commercial growth, while 
responding directly to the University’s Industry Collaboration Zone agenda. 

Recent emerging University proposals for the area include the development of a 
new Robotics & Automation Maturation Centre and a new autonomous vehicle 
testing facility adjacent to the robotic centre. Pre-application discussions have 
now commenced on the Robotics Centre. 

To serve the redeveloped innovation district a new multi-storey car park is also 
proposed in this area. 

2.8 It is important to highlight that the Masterplan has evolved since February 2018, 
to take into account emerging requirements of the University, emerging funding 
and industry collaboration opportunities and feedback received during public 
consultation. The Masterplan is likely to be subject to further refinement as a 
Private Sector Partner is appointed to deliver the Masterplan and reviews the 
proposals in a greater level of detail

As the Masterplan currently has no weight in planning terms, the intention is to 

Page 24



work with the appointed Private Sector Partner to prepare a Development 
Framework which will be adopted by the City Council and be a material planning 
consideration in the determination of future planning applications across the 
Masterplan area. The new Development Framework will replace the existing, 
and now outdated, Crescent Development Framework which was adopted in 
May 2014.

The local community will be engaged in the preparation of the Development 
Framework and consultation on a Draft Development Framework will take place 
once a Private Sector Partner has been appointed and development proposals 
are reviewed, tested and revised. The feedback received during the consultation 
will be reviewed and incorporated into the final Development Framework, where 
appropriate. 

3.0 Progress to date

3.1 Since the conclusion of the initial Masterplan commission in February 2018, 
CBRE and 5plus architects have been commissioned by the City Council and 
University to prepare a Masterplan Business Case and Delivery Strategy and 
support the Private Sector Partner procurement process. 

3.2 As part of the above commission, 5plus architects supported the Council and 
University throughout an initial stage of pubic consultation, which took place 
over the period 6th August until 6th September 2018. Two drop-in events took 
place during the consultation, and officers from the Council, University, CBRE 
and 5plus were present at both events to respond to any questions from 
attendees. The Masterplan proposals were also available to view and submit 
comments online at www.salfordcrescent.com. 

3.3 As highlighted earlier in this report, the Masterplan has evolved since completion 
of the initial commission in February 2018, to take into account emerging 
requirements of the University, emerging funding and industry collaboration 
opportunities and feedback received during public consultation. 

5plus have captured the latest proposals for each Masterplan Development 
Zone within a series of Design Codes which are currently being finalised. The 
Design Codes will effectively set out the minimum standards for development 
that potential Private Sector Partners must conform to within their tender 
responses. Each Design Code will deal with:

 Urban form;
 Street character and public realm;
 Infrastructure;
 Built form and building character; and
 The heritage and conservation context.

3.4 Running in parallel with the above, a number of complementary commissions 
are being developed as follows:

Cultural Destination Investment and Management Strategy

CBRE and Thom Hetherington have now been appointed to prepare a Cultural 
Destination Investment and Management Strategy for The Crescent / Chapel 
Street corridor. The key objectives of the commission are to:

 Understand the current cultural offer in its widest sense (including the 

Page 25

http://www.salfordcrescent.com/


food and beverage sector);
 Define the core objectives for the area in terms of its cultural and 

destination aspirations;
 Understand key market sectors, drivers and geo-economic opportunities 

of the cultural and food and beverage sectors;
 Identify opportunities to significantly enhance the visitor offer in the area 

– improving the performance of quality, but under-performing assets 
such as Salford Museum and Art Gallery;

 Understand strategic opportunities that will enable the food and 
beverage sector in the area to grow and thrive;

 Consider options for development / intervention in the short, medium and 
long-term;

 Identify how strategy options will improve The Crescent / Chapel Street 
corridor as a destination and draw visitation to the area; and

 Identify how the strategy can deliver enhancements to the cultural offer.

Masterplan Parking Demand Study

The Council and University have jointly commissioned SK Transport and 5plus 
architects to evaluate the projected demand and proposed locations of the three 
proposed multi-storey car parks within the Masterplan area. The study will 
establish the baseline demand for parking from the University and City’s visitor 
assets in the area and the potential increase in demand resulting from the 
Masterplan proposals. The commission will confirm whether the proposed 
locations and scale of provision is appropriate and should the study suggest 
different locations/configurations, the Masterplan will be updated to reflect such 
findings. The study will also suggest mechanisms for funding delivery of the car 
parks.

Heritage Assessment of Emerging Design Codes

Turley have been appointed to undertake a heritage assessment of the 
emerging Masterplan Design Codes. The commission will focus on the following 
key strands of work:

 Updated assessments of the significance and setting of heritage assets, 
taking into account recent changes as a result of development. The 
assessments will be undertaken in accordance with current planning 
policy, case law and other guidance;

 An objective review of the Design Codes prepared by 5plus architects 
and providing advice in terms of key heritage principles; and

 Engagement with Historic England.

Salford Crescent Station 

Officers are currently preparing a brief with a view to appointing consultants in 
the near future to assist both the City Council and University in delivering the 
future ambitions for Salford Crescent Station. 

4.0 Proposed approach to procuring a Private Sector Partner 

4.1 Discussions have been progressing with legal advisors and procurement teams 
from both the Council and University over recent months. A two-stage 

Page 26



procurement process (competitive dialogue / competition with negotiation),  is 
proposed, the key stages of which are as follows:

Stage 1 – Issue Development Prospectus and invite Expressions of Interest

A Development Prospectus will be issued at MIPIM in March 2019 to launch the 
development opportunity to the market and a PIN Notice will be issued post-
MIPIM to formally commence the procurement process. The prospectus will set 
out the Masterplan vision and objectives and signpost interested parties to 
formally register their interest in delivering the Masterplan by completing an 
Expression of Interest (EoI) form. The EoI form will also contain a Standard 
Selection Questionnaire (SSQ) that will be used by the bid-scoring team to 
decide which parties to take forward to Stage 2, where bidders will be provided 
with more detailed technical information and invited to submit a tender response. 

The bid scoring team from the Council will comprise Andrew Cartwright, Dan 
Welsh, Dave Norbury, Paul Nugent and Joanne Hardman. Officers will score 
SSQ submissions individually and Jim Wensley will moderate the scoring, with 
one aggregated score being provided by the City Council. The bid scoring team 
from the University will likely comprise Jason Challender (Director of Estates), 
Julie Charge (Director of Finance) and Hawre Baban (Associate Director, 
Development, Estates and Facilities).

4.2 The scoring team will consider the EoI’s received and evaluate the bidders’ 
respective economic and financial standing, technical capacity and ability to 
deliver the contract requirements. Consideration will be given to submissions 
from single organisations that can offer all client/contract requirements (with 
sub-contractors if required), and parties who are looking to collaborate to form a 
group of organisations or consortia, which can collectively deliver the contract 
requirements. We anticipate significant market interest in this opportunity and 
the purpose of this stage is to sift through the EoI’s to select the best (and a 
manageable number of) candidates for Stage 2. 

Once SSQ submissions are scored and moderated by the respective bid scoring 
teams, the outcome of the scoring will be reported to the project steering group, 
comprised of Andrew Cartwright, Dan Welsh, Dave Norbury, Jim Wensley and 
Ben Dolan from the City Council and Jason Challender, Julie Charge, Mike 
Ferraby and Huw Williams (Chief Operating Officer) from the University. The 
steering group will then make a recommendation to the executive group (the 
City Mayor and University Vice Chancellor) regarding the proposed short-list to 
take through to Stage 2 of the process. 

4.3 Stage 2 – Competitive Dialogue and Full Tender

A bid pack will be issued to shortlisted parties at the commencement of Stage 2 
– the competitive dialogue stage. This will provide details of the development 
opportunity sites available and associated land ownership information, 
conceptual layouts, development schedules and programmes. The commercial 
principles which set out the proposed structuring of partnering arrangements, 
including the development agreement, site draw-down / land payment 
requirements and performance obligations of potential partners will also be 
made available. 

The bid pack will include a list of key submission requirements (including 
development proposals, financial analysis, development schedules and delivery 
programme) together with the criteria that will be used by the bid assessors to 

Page 27



assess responses. It is proposed that a ‘test-site’ within the Masterplan area will 
also be included to obtain the required level of technical and financial detail from 
bidders for the evaluation exercise, while still meeting the Masterplan objectives. 
This is likely to be one of the key areas that will differentiate the responses 
received. 

Shortlisted parties will be invited to enter competitive dialogue with the Council 
and University in advance of submitting a final bid. The number of competitive 
dialogue sessions and stages is currently being considered by the partners and 
their advisors. Following competitive dialogue and the evaluation of tenders, the 
bid evaluation team (comprising the same officers as set out in Section 4.1 of 
this report) will make a recommendation on the preferred Private Sector Partner 
to the project steering group, who will then make a recommendation to the 
executive group before securing formal approvals to appoint (via Procurement 
Board for the City Council and University Council for the University).

5.0 Overview of land and property assets to be offered to the Private Sector 
Partner

5.1 The initial tranche of development opportunity sites that will be available to the 
market are:

 The Adelphi Development Zone
 The Crescent Development Zone
 The Innovation District Development Zone

5.2 A plan identifying City Council and University land ownerships within each of the 
zones is provided in Annex 2. It is proposed that all City Council assets, with the 
exception of the Innovation Forum, will be captured by the provisions of 
Development Agreement with the appointed partner and will be available for 
redevelopment.  

5.3 While the University Peel Park Campus Development Zone and Health District 
Development Zone will not feature in the initial tranche of available development 
opportunity sites, the University reserve the right to work with the appointed 
partner to assess opportunities to secure on-Campus investment and 
development.

6.0 Structure of proposed arrangements with University

6.1 Heads of Terms to establish key matters of principle and the overall framework 
(financial, governance etc) within which the partnership will operate are currently 
being finalised.  The Heads of Terms include the following primary provisions in 
respect of commercial arrangements:

 That the City Council and University undertake to progress the selection 
of private sector partner through a competitive tendering process.

 That joint land assets within the development zones will be presented to 
the market and will be captured by and subject to the provisions of the 
Development Agreement with the appointed partner.  Such an approach 
will generate a strong pipeline of development opportunities necessary to 
secure maximum financial benefit and deliver comprehensive 
regeneration objectives.

 That land will be drawn down in phases and that land payments will be 
apportioned between the parties on a pro-rata basis, reflective of the 
extent of land ownership. Appropriate mechanisms will be included to 

Page 28



ensure that abnormal costs, associated with specific land interests, are 
properly accounted for in the apportionment calculation.

6.2 Discussions are continuing on the timing and criteria for the withdrawal of land 
receipt funds. CBRE have considered a range of financial scenarios which 
indicate deferred withdrawals may generate substantially enhanced receipts for 
both parties.

7.0 Structure of proposed arrangements with Private Sector Partner

7.1 The selected private sector partner will bring with them the requisite experience, 
skills, finance and capacity necessary to drive regeneration activities at scale 
and pace. All primary obligations will be enshrined in the Development 
Agreement, contractually binding the partner to deliver on tender commitments.

7.2 The selected private sector partner will act as “master developer” across the 
subject development zones and will bring the necessary development 
management resources to bear on the project. The private sector partner will 
drive all aspects of project delivery, including community engagement, securing 
planning consents and supporting/funding strategic site assembly, including 
where required, compulsory purchase action.

7.3 In addition to robust governance arrangements, bespoke provisions will be 
included within the Development Agreement that necessitate advanced formal 
approval of the City Council and University to all proposed land draw downs.  
This will provide the partners with a significant level of control over development 
activity, ensuring scheme proposals are both compliant with Masterplan 
principles and are financially acceptable.

7.4 The envisaged overall structural framework of proposed arrangements with a 
Private Sector Partner is illustrated in Annex 3 to this report. 

8.0 Next steps

8.1 The provisional programme from now until the appointment of a Private Sector 
Partner is as follows:

Commence formal procurement activities with 
the issue of a Development Prospectus and 
invitation to potential partners to submit an 
Expression of Interest

End of March 2019 

Review Expressions of Interest and invite 
shortlisted parties to enter into competitive 
dialogue selection process

April 2019

Competitive Dialogue May-June
Competitive Dialogue closes and selected 
parties invited to submit final tenders

July 2019

Review final tenders from shortlisted parties August 2019
City Council and University approvals September 2019
Appoint Private Sector Partner September 2019

9.0 Recommendations 

9.1 That Procurement Board grant authority for the commencement of procurement 
activities associated with the appointment of a Private Sector Partner to deliver 
the University of Salford and Crescent Masterplan. 

Page 29



KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Salford 2025: A Modern Global City
The Crescent Development Framework (2014)

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A at this stage.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low

The commencement of procurement activities does not commit the City Council or University 
to enter into contractual arrangements with a Private Sector Partner. Further approvals will 
be sought in due course, following the completion of Stage 2 procurement activities. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the execution of 
works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its 
own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract may be subject to legal 
challenge from an aggrieved provider. 

The Council will follow an OJEU compliant procurement process to find a partner/developer 
to deliver the project using a competitive dialogue process, which may involve more than 
one stage. Throughout the process, the Council will develop a robust form of long term 
development agreement to deliver the project in different phases, which will be jointly let by 
the Council and the University to the successful tenderer in this procurement exercise. This 
development agreement will be negotiated and finalised during the course of the 
procurement process and will contain suitable rights and protections for the Council.

At the present time the period of the contract is not yet established but anticipated to be 10-
15 years. Assuming the request to go out to competition as described in the report is 
approved, once the procurement processes have been completed, any further reports will be 
submitted to Procurement Board as necessary in accordance with CSO’s, including approval 
of the successful partner/developer.

Legal Services have been involved thus far, and will continue to advise, and be involved in 
the project and processes, and will assist with preparing any contractual and associated 
documentation to ensure that the Council’s position and interest are protected.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Natalie Birchall x 2316

This report provides an overview of the Masterplan proposals, and an update on progress 
since the initial Masterplan commission concluded in February 2018. 

At this stage there are no financial implications for the City Council. Further approvals will be 
required as the proposals progress. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATION: Deborah Derbyshire x 6244

Page 30



The appointment of a Private Sector Partner will be subject to a rigorous procurement 
process by undertaking a Competitive Dialogue/Negotiation procedure.  The issue of a PIN 
notice identifying the opportunity to the market and the advertisement is compliant with the 
Public Contract Regulations Directives which conforms with the City Council’s Contractual 
Standing Orders.

HR IMPLICATIONS: N/A at this stage

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

A range of Council directorates and teams have been engaged as the Masterplan has 
progressed, including a wide range of University stakeholders. 

CONTACT OFFICER: Jim Wensley             Tel: 686 7410

 Andrew Cartwright                 Tel: 779 6074

 Dan Welsh                             Tel: 793 2630

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Broughton, Irwell Riverside and Ordsall

Page 31



Annex 1: Overview of Masterplan proposals

P
age 32



Annex 2: Land ownership details

Page 33



Annex 3: Proposed arrangements with a Private Sector Partner  

Page 34


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 6 March 2019
	5a Request for Approval - Contract Extension - Salford Handyperson Service
	5b Request for Approval - Appointment of a Project and Programme Manager to Take a Client Lead on Grant Funded Infrastructure Projects
	5c Request for Approval to go out to Competition - Crescent and University Masterplan - Procurement of Private Sector Partner

